



PACD South Central Region Meeting Minutes Cumberland County Conservation District, Carlisle, PA October 17, 2023

Welcome, Introductions, and Roll Call

Interim South Central Region Director, Sonia Wasco, called the meeting to order at 10:07 a.m. with a quorum present.

Virtual and In-person Participants: Adam McClain, Adams; Jennifer Lentz Kovacs, Bedford; Carl Goshorn, Cumberland; David Stoner, Franklin; Sam Worley, Franklin; Sonia Wasco, Lancaster; Katie Doster, Lebanon; Doug Goodlander, York; Charlie Hanner, NRCS; Heather Smelz, NRCS; Jeff Sholly PACD; Karen Books; Brenda Shambaugh, PACD; Douglas Wolfgang, SCC; Seleen Shives, Fulton; Chris Santore, DEP; Lori Glace, Juniata; Donna Fisher, Blair; Treavor Weaver, Mifflin; Gabe Guthrie, Perry; Lauren Leinbach, Perry.

Region Director Election

There were no volunteers to fill the role of SC region director. Sonia Wasco will continue to serve as interim until a permanent replacement can be nominated.

It was moved by Carl Goshorn and seconded by Doug Goodlander to nominate Sonia Wasco as the interim SC region director. Motion carried.

Set Date for Next Meeting

The next meeting will be held virtually and in person on Thursday, March 7, 2024 at the Cumberland County Conservation District.

Approval of Minutes from the Previous Meeting

The minutes of the previous meeting were provided for review

It was moved by Adam McClain and seconded by Seleen Shives to approve the minutes of the previous meeting. Motion carried.

PACD Business and Report:

Executive Director Brenda Shambaugh provided highlights from her written report.

<u>Legislative Committee Motion</u> – Brenda explained the process of motions for new attendees, and she mentioned that at the last PACD Legislative Committee meeting held in June 2023, A motion was passed and will be considered at each fall PACD Regional meeting. A final vote on the motion will be held at the January 2024 Executive Council meeting. The motion reads:



PACD recognizes the significant environmental benefit of streambank fencing, in a pasture used for grazing, to restrict livestock access to the stream. PACD supports education and incentives for voluntary installation of streambank fencing as opposed to legislation allowing administrative agencies of the Commonwealth and municipalities to require fencing along a stream.

Brenda asked for input on the motion and if anyone thought there should be any changes made. She also read an amended motion by the SW region. A discussion was held.

It was moved by Adam McClain and seconded by Donna Fisher to support the motion presented by the PACD Legislative Committee. Motion carried.

- <u>DEP Policy on Conservation District Chapters 102/105</u> Brenda discussed with everyone the email from DEP Deputy Secretary Bevin Buchheister concerning conservation district responsibilities for the Chapter 102/105 agreements.
- <u>PACD Winter Meeting</u> Brenda informed everyone the 2024 PACD Winter Meeting will take place virtually. She also mentioned that the PACD Executive Board would like input about whether the membership would prefer the future Winter Meetings to be held in-person or virtually. A discussion was held, and several people expressed that the Winter Meeting should be in person. Several others liked the idea of continuing to hold the Winter meeting virtually. All agreed that the summer meeting should be more of a conference that would move each year to different parts of the state. There was support for having a planning committee to gather more information.
- <u>Legislative Update</u> Brenda mentioned that the PA House of Representatives and PA Senate returned to Harrisburg. She mentioned the Senate passed two fiscal code bills in August, but Senate amendments to these bills have not been considered in the House. She mentioned House Bill 1300 and that it includes an additional \$150 Million Dollars from the Game Commission Fund for the PA Clean Streams Fund, but that language was taken out of the legislation. She explained the breakdown of the money and how it affects the Dirt, Gravel, and Low-Volume Road program. A discussion ensued, and there was support for the ACAP program to be supported with dedicated funding. There is a link provided for everyone to view the bill as it currently is written.
- <u>Education & Outreach</u> Brenda mentioned that PACD has been using social media platforms to highlight conservation district activities. She discussed the shared messaging program that districts can use to supplement their social media posts and gave a list of the amounts of messages posted to date.
- Ag Boot Camp Brenda mentioned that this year there were five weeks of Agricultural Conservation Technical Boot Camp training that took place. She noted that the next training is planned for April and May in 2024. The application period will open in January. She also mentioned an intro to Conservation Planning training is planned for October 31st to November 2nd, 2023 for people planning to become a certified planner. She thanked the NRCS and SCC for their support of the trainings and for including conservation district staff.
- <u>Nonpoint Source Pollution Prevention Mini-Grant Program</u>— Brenda mentioned that the 2023-2024 Nonpoint Source Pollution mini-grant application period closed in January. There were thirty-seven projects funded from 28 conservation districts for over \$65,000.

- <u>PACD Ag Plan Reimbursement Program</u> Brenda mentioned that the PACD Ag Plan Reimbursement Program has been a great success. She mentioned there is only approx. \$75,000 left of the \$500,000 Growing Greener grant that was awarded. She mentioned that she has reached out to DEP and the SCC to see about more funding.
- <u>Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program (CREP) Outreach Program Office</u> Brenda mentioned that PACD has approx. \$80,000 still available for CREP mini-grants and is accepting applications for up to \$3,000 to implement educational and outreach activities that support and extend the work of CREP. She mentioned that six projects have been completed this year, totaling approx. \$10,227.
- <u>Riparian Buffer Sub-grants</u> Brenda mentioned that PACD has two Riparian buffer programs available for conservation districts. The <u>Multi-functional Riparian Buffer Sub-grant for conservation districts</u> program sponsored by PENNVEST still has approx. \$18,000 available and must be used by the end of the year. There is no match requirement for this program. A total of 43 grants implementing over 137 acres of buffers have been awarded funding from this program since 2018. The C2P2 Multi-functional and Conventional Riparian Buffer Program has been continued due to a C2P2 grant from DCNR awarded to PACD. While multi-functional buffers are preferred, conventional buffers are eligible as well. There is approx. still \$85,000 available and there is a 50/50 match required.
- <u>Lawn Conversion Grant</u> Brenda announced PACD was awarded a \$100,000 C2P2 grant from DCNR to offer a Lawn Conversion Sub-grant Program for Conservation Districts. The goal of the program is to offer lawn conversion training to conservation districts and distribute funding to lawn conversion projects across PA. She mentioned there was a webinar training held over Zoom on June 20th, 2023 and an in-person training held at the Sunset Golf Course in Middletown on July 11th, 2023.
- <u>Invasive Species</u> Brenda mentioned that PACD was awarded a Landscape Scale Restoration Grant from the USDA Forest Service to offer a PRISM pilot program in northwestern PA. Brenda mentioned that over the past few months, PACD has been meeting the conservation districts in the NW area and the Governor's Invasive Species Council to help develop the program and promote it in the NW region. She also mentioned all but 2 of the districts in the NW region are participating and the program is looking for support of a statewide invasive species program.
- <u>Leadership development</u> Brenda mentioned the 2023 Spring Leadership Webinar Series was held in June with over 180 conservation district personnel attending five webinar sessions. She mentioned that in August, the Strategic Planning Grants program began accepting Letters of Intent for districts that are interested in funding or other support for strategic planning projects in the upcoming year. She also mentioned that a Fall Leadership Webinar Series is planned for November and December with sessions on insurance, financial issues, and website accessibility. Planning has begun for 2024 Regional Staff Workshops as well as Regional Director Workshops.
- <u>Clean Water Academy</u> Brenda mentioned that the Clean Water Academy is continuing to grow in terms of course offerings, enrollments, completions, and new user registrations. She mentioned that a highly anticipated new Chapter 105 training program on wetland determination is being developed as are several Chapter 102 training programs.
- <u>102/105 Technical Training</u> Brenda mentioned that Basic Technical Training will take place in-person in May of 2024. PACD will forward additional information as soon as its available.

- <u>Fall Communication Series</u> Brenda mentioned that PACD is working with DEP to provide an in-person only fall communications series in State College and offered Verbal Judo on October 12th 13th 2023 and The Art and Science of Deception: Detecting Deception and Getting to the Truth on either October 25th or October 26th 2023.
- <u>Conservation District Watershed Specialist Meeting</u> Brenda mentioned the Conservation
 District Watershed Specialist Meeting took place in-person October 3rd through October 5th,
 2023 in State College, PA. October 3rd is a special training for new watershed specialists
 hired after October 2018.

Regional Information Sharing

- Adams Fully staffed for 3 months but now they need a new ACAP Coordinator; projects not moving fast enough; Hoa's wetland application issues.
- Bedford Fully staffed; shouted out to PACD Program Manager Holly Miller for her prompt assistance; moving on CAP sediment reduction projects.
- Blair Finding funding for Ag projects; Westmoreland did a program for landowners/farms; farm lane projects are being prioritized. Adam asked who is signing off on designs- local engineer firm. Nature work park Howl-o-ween pet costume event; SLF in abundance; Chelsey Weyant is testifying in the PA Senate on behalf of PACD and the Blair CD on stormwater.
- Cumberland Ag money being spent on 6 projects; 2.8M will be spent on a manure storage project; interviewing for a new engineer; FPR- a lot of complaints chicken slaughterhouse and hog compose piles.
- Franklin CAP Coordinator and Ag Tech left; they completed a \$670,000 floodplain project; they held a farm tour and awarded their conservation farmer award.
- Fulton Working on Ag projects and a major stream project with 3 landowners; hired part time AG asst; and are purchasing 2nd no-till drill; using ACAP money for a cover crop incentive program; developing a new plan to incorporate urban and ag land demonstration projects on their new land.
- Juniata Six projects contracted and have all their ACAP money committed; DGR money all committed; short staffed.
- Lancaster Thanks PACD for leading the salary survey; they are remodeling their office to accommodate more employees; they have 41 employees now and would like to expand to 45 by the end of 2024; their 2024 budget is \$13.3 million; they are looking at bundling projects to expedite completions; ARPA money coming to the CD from the county; want to expand their water monitoring program.
- Lebanon 10-12 water quality monitoring stations in the Swatara Creek will be sampling water quality; fall tree planting project distributed over 1k trees; out of the \$3.5 million ACAP funding available, \$2.5 million has been allocated.
- Mifflin Turf conversion projects underway; want to restructure personnel and hire additional staff; restructuring, website will go live soon; they have allocated all their ACAP funding.
- Perry New AG program; conducting ag tech interviews; collected tires; combined programs going well.
- York ACAP going well but CEGs did not go as well; flood plain reconnection program was a huge cost; 10,000 acres of cover crop projects; not many large animal operations, but lots

of stream restoration needs; looking at a stream monitoring program; RC&D program is having difficulty.

Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) Report

Karen Books provided verbal highlights from the DEP written report:

- Karen mentioned that any emails sent to the agency to the local DEP representative should also include a CC to Carl DeLuca and Karen Books as well.
- She mentioned that new CAFO information has been published in the bulletin on the DEP website. She also mentioned that the Manure Management manual is currently out for comments and people can make their comments online with the EComment tool.
- She informed the group that there will be a Chapter 102 training coming up in the fall.
- She also mentioned that Environmental Education grants are now open, and that people must apply through their regional resource representative.

PA State Conservation Commission (SCC) Report

Executive Secretary Doug Wolfgang provided the following report:

- Doug mentioned that sixty-six conservation districts in PA have signed the delegation agreements with 137.2 million dollars in funds committed.
- Doug mentioned that are working with the state to find dedicated funding for the ACAP program.
- He mentioned that they have been working with the Tech. Assistance Center in State College and are hoping to have an engineer in place soon.
- He noted that currently there are 66 conservation districts with signed delegation agreements for the Nutrient Management and Odor Management Planning Program.
- He mentioned that the Staff and Center held the DGLVR conference in Scranton Sept. 26th to the 28th.

USDA Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) Report

Charlie Hannah and Smelz provided verbal highlights from NRCS's written report:

- Funding NRCS has received Inflation Reduction Act funding. EQIP funding will double next year to be \$25-26 million and will double again in 2025. Watershed grants are available to address legacy sediment and mushroom compost issues.
- *Philadelphia Office* NRCS is opening an office in Philadelphia in June. It will house a soil scientist and district conservationist and will study heavy metals detection.
- Retirement Cadre NRCS has created a Retirement Cadre program through the National Older Worker Fund aimed at retired individuals over 55 years old, former NRCS and PSU Extension employees, to offer on the job training on site inspections, I&Es, spot checks and other practices. Contact Charlie Hanner or Denise Coleman for more information.

Adjournment

Motion made by Doug Goodlander and seconded by Carl Goshorn to adjourn the meeting at 12:13 PM. Motion carried.